Minutes of the meeting of the East Sussex Fire Authority URGENCY PANEL held at Fire & Rescue Service Headquarters, Eastbourne on Thursday 7 Jul 2016 at 10:30 hours.

Members present: Councillors Barnes, Howson (Chairman), Lambert, O'Quinn and Taylor.

N.B. Councillor Lambert attended the meeting in place of Councillor Butler, having been approved by the Deputy Monitoring Officer. Councillor Pragnell also attended the meeting

Officers present: Mr. G. Walsh (Chief Fire Officer & Chief Executive), Ms. D. Whittaker (Deputy Chief Fire Officer), Mr. M. Andrews (Assistant Chief Fire Officer), Mr. D. Savage (Assistant Director Resources/Treasurer), Mrs. L. Ridley (Assistant Director Planning & Improvement), Miss. L. Woodley (Deputy Monitoring Officer), Mr. D. Conti (IMD Manager), Mr. G. Middleton (Spirit Acuity) and Mrs. S. Klein (Clerk to the Fire Authority).

1. **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST**

1.1 It was noted that, in relation to matters on the agenda, no participating Member had any disclosable pecuniary interest under Section 30 of the Localism Act 2011.

2. **ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN**

2.1 Councillor Howson was elected Chairman of the Panel for the ensuing year.

3. **APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE**

3.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Butler – Councillor Lambert was welcomed as her substitute.

4. <u>NOTIFICATION OF ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT</u>

4.1 There were none.

5. NON-CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES OF THE LAST URGENCY PANEL MEETING HELD ON 20 NOVEMBER 2015

5.1 **RESOLVED –** That the minutes of the meeting of the Urgency Panel held on 20 November 2015 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. (Copy in Minute Book).

6. **IMD TRANSFORMATION**

- 6.1 Members considered a report of the Chief Fire Officer that presented the outcome of the IMD Transformation procurement process and requested their approval to proceed to Contract Award. (Copy in Minute Book).
- 6.2 This item had been brought to the Urgency Panel because it was a complex issue, extremely detailed, and needed to be considered before the next meeting of the Fire Authority in September 2016.
- 6.3 Mr. Conti and Mr. Middleton (Spirit Acuity) were welcomed to the meeting and Members received a presentation which took them through the process from July 2014, when the Fire Authority had agreed to transform the IT infrastructure and services, to the present time (see attached Appendix).

- 6.4 In 2014, the Fire Authority had embarked upon substantial work to consider a major transformation to the way that the organisation's Information Technology services were to be delivered in the future. Many IT services and systems were reaching the end of their serviceable lives, or were unsuitable to meet the new demands of the Authority's business, and IMD resources were becoming constrained by knowledge and the capacity required to meet the increasingly dynamic and demanding requirements of the business, even at a standstill, based on existing plans.
- 6.5 In May 2015 the Corporate Management Team initiated the IMD Transformation Programme and in April 2016, the Authority completed the extensive process of evaluation of final tenders from the three shortlisted bidders following a Competitive Dialogue procurement exercise. This resulted in telent Technology Services Ltd being identified as the preferred supplier.
- 6.6 Members noted that the actual value of the services would probably vary over time according to the Authority's changing future needs. The Initial Order itself was subject to further detailed refinement but its value was expected to fall between £8.7m and £9.0m, depending on the timing of certain charges.
- 6.7 Councillor Barnes asked a number of questions including to what extent the new IT services would be able to work with the police and ambulance's IT services if the fire and rescue service moves towards further collaboration; how decisions would be made as to what work would be undertaken by the company, telent Technology Services Ltd, and what would be retained in-house; the company's capacity to manage the contract; and, what incentive there was for the company to improve, if they were working for a fixed profit.
- 6.8 Mr. Middleton explained that telent Technology Services Ltd would be working for a fixed profit <u>rate</u>, rather than a fixed profit level, allowing them to make more profit through growing the volume of business or doing the same work at a lower cost. This would be a non-exclusive contract, enabling the company to encourage others, such as the Police, to use the contract.
- 6.9 Mr. Middleton also explained that the user (ESFRS) would decide how work would be split between the company and ESFRS and that the internal Client Function would moderate the business relationship with the company, ensuring that sensible propositions came out of these controls. Members were advised that the contract had been designed to include a contract management role, with the company being obliged to report to the Authority on its own performance.
- 6.10 Mr. Conti explained that telent Technology Services Ltd worked with a number of organisations, and sought to achieve better collaboration between partners, identifying problems that organisations were facing, and the business sitting behind the IT, at the start of the contract so that these could be aligned from the beginning.
- 6.11 Mr. Conti also confirmed that real time communication and scenario planning were advantages that would be realised from the contract award, although accepting that Members would need more detail on growth and transformation.
- 6.12 Councillor Lambert was pleased that Sussex Police could be considered in the contract at this early stage but asked why no savings had yet been identified. She was also concerned for staff who would be affected and asked about TUPE arrangements, and support and training of staff.

- 6.13 Mr. Savage explained that the costs identified were for an 8-year period, as the 7-year contract started mid-way through the financial year. He further explained that there were areas of spend within the contract with telent Technology Services Ltd, and in other Authority IT costs, where it was expected that savings could be made. However, the expectation through the outline strategy was that investment in IT over and above that included in the contract, would enable business change, service improvement and savings elsewhere in the Service. He said that it was likely that IT spend may increase as technology drives out savings in other parts of the Service; these savings would be identified as part of the full IMD strategy and supporting project business cases and a future paper would be brought to the Fire Authority during 2017 to identify these areas.
- 6.14 Mr. Savage also explained that there was a clear TUPE process, and ESFRS would ensure compliance; some informal work had already been completed to identify those staff potentially affected, including meetings with the company. He also explained that there were various elements to the training, including on-going technical training, part of the 'run' part of the package; and broader training to include the assessment of the impact on business, part of the 'transformation' part of the package. The DCFO recognised that, as the Service changed and transformed, she would also want to see competency improved internally, not just with the remaining team. Mr. Middleton confirmed that training for managing contracts had been a requirement in the procurement exercise and contract.

6.15 **RESOLVED –** That

- authority be delegated to the Chief Fire Officer, in consultation with the Treasurer and Monitoring Officer, to set in place the final Agreement with the supplier, telent Technology Services Ltd, for an Initial Order value of up to £9m over a seven year contract term; and
- ii) the outline IMD Strategy be noted and it be noted that a final more detailed IMD Strategy will be developed and brought to Members for approval at a future meeting.

7. **EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC**

7.1 **RESOLVED** – That item 8 be exempt under paragraphs 3 and 5 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 and accordingly is not open for public inspection on the grounds that if the public and press were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information, i.e. that it includes information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information) and information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings.

8. CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES OF THE LAST URGENCY PANEL MEETING HELD ON 20 NOVEMBER 2015 (EXEMPT CATEGORIES 3 and 5)

8.1 **RESOLVED** – That the confidential minutes of the meeting of the Urgency Panel held on 20 November be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. (Copy in Minute Book).

The meeting concluded at 11:27 hours.

Signed Chairman

Dated this day of